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On the night of 24th August, 2018 the settlements of the Perekop Isthmus of the Crimean Peninsula were
enveloped in a caustic fog that caused local population such symptoms as tearing, sore throat, weakness and
skin rashes. Organized laboratory measurements of pollutants in the air revealed significant excess of the
allowed rates for indicative parameters. By the measurement results were established involvement in the
incident local plant of «Crimean Titan».
Due to the severe deterioration of the situation on 14 September, 2018 by the commission` decision of the
occupation authorities in Armyansk city was imposed a state of emergency. In this regard production activities
at the plant were stopped, as well as schools were closed and local population was evacuated (more than
4,000 people, three quarters of who were children). The territorial branch of Federal Service for Surveillance
on Consumer Rights Protection and Human Wellbeing (hereinafter – Rospotrebnadzor) even published for the
residents of Krasnoperekopsk district rules of behavior in the area of the air pollution. Later, the Arbitration
Court of Crimea, controlled by the Russian Federation, confirmed that Rospotrebnadzor requested additional
fee (736.8 million rubles what is about 300 million hryvnias) from the operator of the Crimean Titan plant to
the state budget for waste disposal to the acid storage.
The above-mentioned pollutant emissions in the Crimea also affected the settlements of two districts of the
Kherson region adjacent to the administrative border with autonomy. According to the statement of the Head
of the Kherson Regional State Administration, 37 Ukrainian border guards on duty at the «Kalanchak»
checkpoint applied for medical assistance. The health complaints of the border guards and residents of
Kherson region nearby villages were similar to the mentioned above in the city of Armyansk: the same
headache, constant cough and skin rashes. Therefore, due to a possible environmental threat, the State Border
Guard Service of Ukraine on 6th September, 2018 temporarily closed the pass to the annexed peninsula
through both crossing points: «Kalanchak» and «Chaplynka».
According to the information from «Analytical Review of Man-made and Natural Security in Ukraine in 2018»
prepared by Ukrainian Research Institute of Civil Defense (UNDICZ) and Daily reports by SES of Ukraine on
emergencies of man-made, natural and other character, despite the fact that territory of two regions of Ukraine
was affected, on the territory of Kalanchak and Chaplynsky districts of Kherson region for the period from
24.08.2018 to 12.10.2018 no emergency situation was established or no emergency accident that requires
eliminative measures was recorded.
Considering information above, after two years from the moment of the accident, the editorial board of the
regional newspaper «Ecology of the industrial region» together with specialists of the «Ukrainian Scientific
Institute of Technical Ecology» and legal professionals decided to find out the way and kind of actions what
have been taken by our State in connection with the incident at the plant of «Crimean Titan».
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According to the information provided by the Secretariat
of CabMin (of 24.06.2020 №17-20 / 1822), the Ministry
of Ecology and Natural Resources of Ukraine (hereinafter
- Ministry of Environment) and the Ministry of Justice of
Ukraine (hereinafter - Ministry of Justice) were
determined as responsible bodies for the implementation
of the tasks defined by Decree №320 and Decision of
18.10.2018.

The Decree of the President of Ukraine dated of
12.10.2018 № 320/2018 put into the effect the Decision
of the National Security and Defense Council of Ukraine
of 12 October, 2018 «On urgent measures to protect
national interests in the South and East of Ukraine, in the
Black and Azov Seas and the Kerch Strait» (Hereinafter –
Decree №320 and Decision of 12.10.2018, respectively).
According to subparagraph 1 (в) of paragraph 1 of
Decision of 12.10.2018 the Cabinet of Ministers (shorted
to CabMin) of Ukraine was instructed, among other
things, to immediate ensure the implementation of
environmental impact assessment, adoption of an
appropriate conclusion on environmental pollution in the
north of the temporarily occupied territory of the
Autonomous Republic of Crimea and possible
involvement in this actions the plant of «Crimean Titan».
In addition, the Cabinet should disclose relevant
environmental information and take measures to prevent
harmful effects on the health and property of citizens, as
well as provide them with appropriate legal assistance to
compensate the damage, in the manner prescribed by
law. According to paragraph 2 of Decree №320, control
over the implementation of the Decision of 12.10.2018 is
entrusted to the Secretary of the National Security and
Defense Council of Ukraine or NSDC (Ukrainian РНБО
/RNBO[U]).
In accordance with subparagraph 2 of paragraph 3 of the
Regulations on the Apparatus of the National Security
and Defense Council of Ukraine approved by the Decree
of the President of Ukraine of 14.10.2005 № 1446/2005
NSDC Apparatus monitors implementation of decisions
of the Council, acts and instructions of the President of
Ukraine, the implementation of which is controlled by the
Secretary of NSDC.

According to the information provided by the Ministry of
Environment (ref. №5/1-50/183-20 of 02.07.2020), in
accordance with data of the Unified Register for
Environmental Impact Assessment dated of 30.06.2020,
the environmental impact assessment procedure
prescribed by Decision of 12.10.2018, has not been
initiated and the relevant conclusions have not been
issued. At the same time, it was reported that according
to the Regulations approved by the resolution of CabMin
dated of 04/19/2017 №275, the implementation of the
state supervision (control) in the field of environmental
protection, rational use, reproduction and protection of
the natural resources was attributed to the State
Ecological Inspectorate of Ukraine. The Inspectorate
claims to compensate damages and losses, caused to the
state as a result of violation of the legislation on matters
within its competence, calculates amount of the losses
and files appropriate claims in court.
In accordance with the preamble of the Law of Ukraine
«On Environmental Impact Assessment», this law
establishes the legal and organizational framework for
environmental impact assessment aimed at the
preventing of environmental damage, environmental
safety, environmental protection, rational use and
reproduction of natural resources in the process of
making decisions about economic activities that may
have a significant impact on the environment, considering
state, public and private interests.
Also, according to art. 1 of the Law of Ukraine «On
Environmental Impact Assessment», environmental
impact determined as any consequences of planned
activities for the environment as planned economic
activity, including construction, reconstruction, technical
re-equipment, expansion, re-profiling, liquidation
(dismantling) of objects and other interference in to
natural environment.
Despite the fact that environmental impact assessment
of environmental pollution in the north of the temporarily
occupied territory of the Autonomous Republic of
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Crimea, the immediate implementation of which by
Decision of 12.10.2018 entrusted to the Ministry of
Nature (indirectly through CabMin) is not subject to the
Law of Ukraine «On Environmental Impact Assessment»,
according to the above information follows that the
newly created Ministry of Environment does not have
data on the availability and completeness
implementation of the CabMin’s order under the Decision
of 12.10.2018 by the Ministry of Nature.
Thus, according to the information provided by NSDC
Apparatus (ref. №405/22-01 from 08.07.2020), the
Ministry of Environment informed about the status of
implementation of the subparagraph 1 (в) of paragraph 1
of the Decision dated of 12.10.2018 and according to
what NSDC Apparatus «believes» the following: on
behalf of this Ministry Research Institution «Ukrainian
Scientific and Research Institute of Ecological Problems»
(hereinafter - USRIEP) has conducted an environmental
impact assessment and made conclusions on the fact of
environmental pollution in the north of the temporarily
occupied territory of the Autonomous Republic of Crimea
and corresponding violation of environmental rights of
the Ukrainian citizens as well as possible involvement of
the Crimean Titan plant in this event. Herewith,
proceeding from the information of the Apparatus of
NSDC, the message of the Ministry of Environment does
not contain data concerning provided by subparagraph 1
(в) of paragraph 1 of Decision of 12.10.2018 on
promulgation of the conclusions of the environmental
impact assessment as relevant environmental
information. And new decisions based on the results of

the CabMin`s tasks defined by these provisions of
Decision of 12.10.2018 were not taken by NSDC.
It should be noted that, according to the research made
by USRIEP in 2018 in the southern part of the Kherson
region in connection with the recorded numerous reports
of residents of the territories adjacent to the occupied
Autonomous Republic of Crimea on possible emissions of
toxic substances, complaints about the deterioration of
the health of residents who were affected by emissions
from the plant of «Crimean Titan», were organized
working trips for visual inspection and sampling of the air,
precipitation, soil, surface and drinking water in
Kalanchak and Chaplyn districts.
As a result of the research USRIEP specialists established
the fact of significant impact of the production activity of
the Crimean Titan plant on the soil ecosystem in the
adjacent areas of the Kherson region and the need for
urgent measures to eliminate the consequences of the
accident. In particular, the materials indicate the
presence of abnormal levels (up to 1000 MPC) of certain
toxic trace elements (in particular, beryllium) in ground
water. In order to organize the current assessment of the
impact of enterprises located on the territory of the
southern part of Kherson region in Armyansk and
Krasnoperekopsk, to monitor the state of the
environment was proposed to install basic network. The
first stage intended to install one stationary automated
observation post in each of following locations: checkpoints «Kalanchak» and «Chaplynka», and the
settlement of Chervonyi Chaban (currently - the village of
Preobrazhenka).

4

According to art. 107 of the Constitution of Ukraine, the
NSDC is the coordinating body on national security and
defense under the President of Ukraine. At the same time,
NSDC coordinates and controls the activities of executive
bodies in the field of national security and defense, and
the President of Ukraine, among other things, is the
guarantor of observance of the Constitution of Ukraine
(Basic Law), human and civil rights and freedoms (art. 102
of the Basic Law). Thus, the Decision of 12.10.2018 was
aimed to ensure a number of fundamental rights of
citizens of Ukraine, in particular, provided by art. 50 of
the Constitution of Ukraine: everyone has the right to a
safe environment for life and health, and compensation
for damage caused by violation of this right; everyone is
guaranteed the right of free access to information on the
state of the environment, quality of food and household
items, as well as the right to its dissemination. Such
information can be classified by no one.
According to the preamble of the Law of Ukraine «On
Environmental Protection» (hereinafter - the Specialized
Law), which defines the basic principles of environmental
regulation, environmental protection, rational use of
natural resources, environmental safety of human life
what is an integral condition of sustainable economic and
social development of Ukraine. To this end, Ukraine
pursues an environmental policy on its territory, aimed,
inter alia, to protect the lives and health of the population
from the negative effects caused by environmental
pollution.
According to art. 3 of the Specialized Law, among basic
principles of environmental protection are guaranteeing
safe environment for human life and health, prioritizing
environmental
safety requirements,
mandatory
environmental impact assessment, as well as
compensation for damage caused by violations of
environmental legislation.
According to art. 5 of the Specialized Law, people's health
and life are subjects of state protection from the negative
impact of adverse environmental conditions. According
to art. 3 of the Basic Law, a person’s life and health, honor
and dignity, inviolability and security are recognized in
Ukraine as the highest social value. At the same time, in
accordance with art. 16 of the same law, ensuring
environmental safety and maintaining ecological balance
on the territory of Ukraine, overcoming the consequences
of the Chornobyl catastrophe what is catastrophe of

planetary scale, preserving the gene pool of the Ukrainian
people is the duty of the state.
Also, according to art. 11 of the Specialized Law, citizens
are guaranteed realization of environmental rights. At the
same time, violated rights in the field of environmental
protection must be restored and their protection is
implementing through judicial procedures in accordance
with the legislation of Ukraine.
According to article 10 of the Specialized Law,
environmental rights of the citizens, in particular, are
ensured by the following:
 Realization of state control over compliance with
legislation on environmental protection;
 Unavoidability of liability for violation of
environmental legislation;
 Compensation in the prescribed manner of damage
caused to the citizens` health and property as a result of
violation of environmental legislation.
According to art. 113 of the Constitution of Ukraine, the
Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine is the highest authority
in the system of executive authorities and in its activities
guided by the Constitution and laws of Ukraine as well as
decrees of the President of Ukraine and resolutions of the
Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine, taken in accordance with the
Constitution and laws of Ukraine.
In accordance with art. 116 of the Constitution of Ukraine,
CabMin, among other things, ensures implementation of
the Constitution and laws of Ukraine, acts of the
President of Ukraine, as well as policy in the fields of
nature protection, environmental safety and nature
management; takes measures to ensure human and civil
rights and freedoms; directs and coordinates the work of
ministries and other executive bodies.
According to art. 8 of the Code of Civil Protection of
Ukraine, CabMin is the governing authority of the unified
state civil protection system, which according to art. 31 of
this Code is obliged (as well as other civil protection
authorities) to provide population with prompt and
reliable information on civil protection, in particular,
information on emergencies that are foreseen or have
occurred, with a definition of their classification, extent
and consequences and also on the Cabinet`s activities in
civil protection.
According to art. 15 of the Law of Ukraine «On High-Risk
Objects», the central executive bodies implementing
state policy in the area of civil protection, fire and man-
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made safety, state supervision (control), among other
things, in the appropriate manner inform population in
the field of environmental protection about emergencies
that have occurred at high-risk facilities.
According to art. 14 of the Law of Ukraine «On Access to
Public Information», those who are managing
information obliged to disclose prescribed by this and
another laws information, in particular, information of
public interest (socially necessary information).
According to art. 21 of the Law of Ukraine «On
Information», information on the state of the
environment, accidents, catastrophes, dangerous natural
phenomena and other emergencies that have occurred
(may occur) and threaten human safety can not has
limited access. At the same time, according to art. 29 of
the same law, the subject of public interest is information
that, among other things, ensures the implementation of
constitutional rights, freedoms and responsibilities;
indicates possibility of human rights violations,
misleading the public, harmful environmental and other
negative consequences of actions (omissions) of
individuals or legal entities, etc.
According to art. 9 of the Specialized Law, defining the
environmental rights of citizens of Ukraine, everyone,
among other things, has right to safe for his life and
health environment, as well as free access to
environmental information and free receiving, use,
distribution and storage of such information.
According to the definition of art. 25 of the Specialized
Law, environmental information includes any information
about following:
 state of the environment or its objects and the levels of
their pollution;
 sources and factors that affect or may affect state of
the environment and human health;
 threats and causes of environmental emergencies, the
results of the elimination of these phenomena,
recommendations how to reduce their negative impact on
natural objects and human health.
According to art. 251 of the Specialized Law, the central
executive body implementing the state policy in the field
of environmental protection is obliged to ensure free
access of the population to information on the state of
the environment by the following actions:
 systematic informing the population through the
media about state of the environment, the dynamics of

its changes, sources of pollution, waste disposal or other
changes in the environment and nature of the impact of
environmental factors on human health;
 immediate notification of environmental emergencies;
 transfer information obtained as a result of
environmental monitoring to the authorities competent
to make decisions on such information;
 ensuring free access to environmental not a state
secret information.
According to art. 50 of the Specialized Law,
environmental safety is guaranteed to the citizens of
Ukraine by implementing a wide range of interrelated
political, economic, technical, organizational, state and
legal and other measures and considered as a state of the
environment, which ensures prevention of deterioration
of the ecological situation and emergence of danger to
human health. At the same time, environmental security
is an integral part of the national security.
The Law of Ukraine «On National Security of Ukraine», in
accordance with the Constitution of Ukraine, defines the
basic principles of state policy guarantee society and
every citizen protection from threats. According to art. 3
of this law, state policy in the field of national security
and defense, among other things, aims at ensuring
environmental security, namely, protection of man and
citizen (their life and dignity, constitutional rights and
freedoms, safe living conditions, territory and
environment) from emergencies. At the same time,
threats to Ukraine's national security and relevant state
policy priorities in the area of national security and
defense are defined in the National Security Strategy of
Ukraine and other documents on national security and
defense, approved by NSDC decisions and decrees of the
President of Ukraine.
According to art. 26 of the same Law, the National
Security Strategy of Ukraine - the basis for all other
documents in the area of national security and defense
(in particular, the Environmental Security Strategy of
Ukraine) is developed on behalf of the President of
Ukraine after six months of his assumption of the
presidency. At the same time, among other authorized
bodies and institutions involed to the National Security
Strategy of Ukraine development, the National Institute
for Strategic Studies (NISS) is taking a part in the draft
preparation and the President of Ukraine may amend the
National Security Strategy of Ukraine, in accordance with
prescribed procedure, if necessary.
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Despite the time elapsed since the cadence begins
current President of Ukraine (almost 1.5 years), the new
National Security Strategy of Ukraine has not been
approved yet. Also it is current valid document, which
since the entry into the force of the Decree of 26.05.2015
№ 287/2015 (ie, before the entry into force of the
Decision of 12.10.2018) has never been changed. At the
same time, even outdated Strategy, among other threats
to the national security of Ukraine, identifies
environmental threats as an excessive anthropogenic
impact and high level of man-caused load on the territory
of Ukraine; unsatisfactory condition of the unified state
system and civil defense forces, environmental
monitoring system (p.3.9, p.4.14). Also outdated Strategy
identifies the main directions of the relevant state policy,
in particular, creation of an efficient environmental
monitoring system.
According to the messages posted on the official website
of
the
President
of
Ukraine
(https://www.president.gov.ua/) the new National
Security Strategy of Ukraine («Human Security - Country
Security») was considered at the meeting of the National
Security and Defense Council on 21.01.2020 and its draft
was approved by the Council and proposed for approval
to the President at the meeting on 18.02.2020. In
addition, the current director of the NISS Oleksandr

Lytvynenko said that the draft was developed by the
relevant working group.
It should be noted that among all the materials published
on
the
official
web
resource
of
NISS
(https://niss.gov.ua/), the plant of «Crimean Titan» (as
well as other large industrial facilities located on the
Perekop Isthmus of the Autonomous Republic of Crimea
near the administrative border of the Kherson region of
Ukraine) mentioned only once, in the monograph
«Donbass and Crimea: the price of return»,
recommended for publication by the protocol of the
Academic Council of the National Institute for Strategic
Studies №6 from 09.09.2015, which shows the negative
economic consequences related to the actual
(temporary) loss of relevant assets of Ukraine. Other
materials published by NISS do not contain assessments
and do not consider the results of the above study made
by USRIEP in 2018 on the territory of southern part of the
Kherson region and provided by the National Security
and Defense Council in accordance with Decision of
12.10.2018. At the same time, in an interview dated of
10th of September, 2018, the First Deputy of NISS Vasyl
Yablonsky, commenting on Ukraine's actions after the
incident at the Crimean Titan plant, said that gathering
evidence and preparing relevant lawsuits to the
international courts against Russia is a long process,
however, the state at least will initiated it.
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According to its own Statute, approved by the Decree of
December 16, 2002 № 1158 (as amended by the Decree
of October 7, 2019 №737/ 2019) NISS is an advisory body
for the President of Ukraine, the basic research
institution of scientific and analytical support of the
President of Ukraine and NSDC. To this end, the Institute
prepares and submits to the President of Ukraine and
NSDC analytical materials, draft policy documents and
regulations. Among the main tasks of this Institute
defined by its Statute are following:
 scientific substantiation, analysis and assessment of
problems and prospects of sustainable development of
Ukraine, its national security, proposal development of
its scientifically substantiated solution;
 scientific support of the implementation by the
President of Ukraine, the National Security and Defense
Council of Ukraine powers in the field of national security
of Ukraine.
Given that the new decisions based on the results of the
CabMin`s tasks defined by the provisions of Decision of
12.10.2018, NSDC did not take, it is likely that NISS in
accordance with its own Statute did not study the
problems identified as a result of the above study of
USRIEP. Thus, the relevant scientifically sound proposals
for their solution, in particular, at the level of NSDC and
the Cabinet of Ministers, were not developed.
It should be emphasized that in accordance with art. 65
of the Specialized Law, a separate area of Ukraine, where
an environmental emergency has occurred (negative
changes in the environment that limit or exclude the
possibility of human life and economic activity, and
require emergency measures by the state) can be
declared by the President of Ukraine on the proposal of
the NSDC or CabMin (with further approval by the
Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine) a zone of ecological
emergency.
According to art. 5 of the Law of Ukraine «On a zone of
ecological emergency», reasons for declaring a separate
area as a zone of ecological emergency can be following
occasions:
 significant exceeding of the maximum allowable norms
of environmental quality indicators ascertained by
statute;
 the emergence of a real threat to life and health of a
large number of people or causing significant material
damage to legal entities, individuals or the environment

due to excessive environmental pollution, the destructive
effects of natural forces or other factors;
 negative changes that have occurred in the natural
environment over a large area and which cannot be
eliminated without application of emergency measures
by the state;
 negative changes that have occurred in the natural
environment, which significantly limit or exclude the
possibility of living and doing business in the territory;
 significant increase in the incidence of the population
due to negative changes in the natural environment.
In accordance with art. 66 of the Specialized Law, in case
of an accident that caused pollution of the environment,
enterprises, institutions and organizations are obliged to
immediately begin to eliminate its consequences. At the
same time, officials or owners of the enterprises, heads
of the institutions and organizations are obliged to report
to the authorized bodies and public the accident and
measures taken to eliminate its consequences. However,
none of the mandatory measures were taken by the
owner of the «Crimean Titan» plant, in accordance with
numerous information reports that accompanied the
incident in 2018 related to accidental pollution in the
Autonomous Republic of Crimea, Kalanchak and
Chaplynsky districts of Kherson region of Ukraine due to
economic (production) activities of the plant.
After Russian occupied part of the territory of Ukraine the
property complex of this plant located in the city of
Armyansk in the Autonomous Republic of Crimea was
leased to Titanium Investments LLC (registration Moscow, Russian Federation) but it is still owned by PJSC
«Crimean Titan «, renamed in the spring of 2015 by the
founders (Group DF) at PJSC «Ukrainian Chemical
Products» (USREOU 32785994, Kyiv) and it is on the
balance sheet of its branch in Armyansk (USREOU
39159891).
According to art. 66 of the Specialized Law, in order to
prevent accidents and eliminate harmful environmental
consequences, the central executive body implementing
the state policy on industrial safety and the central
executive body implementing the state policy in the field
of nuclear safety together with the central executive body
that implements state policy on state supervision
(control) in the field of environmental protection, rational
use, reproduction and protection of natural resources,
systematically inspect the condition of environmentally
hazardous facilities and the implementation of
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appropriate measures and requirements for its safe
exploitation.
However, according to the official web resource of the
integrated automated system of state supervision
(control)
«Inspection
Portal»
(https://inspections.gov.ua) and the Unified State
Register
of
Court
Decisions
(http://www.reyestr.court.gov.ua) during the time that
has elapsed since the entry into force of Decision of
12.10.2018 (as of 01.08.2020) the State Environmental
Inspectorate of Ukraine (hereinafter - State Inspectorate)
did not make any inspections of entities related to the
Crimean Titan plant; no decisions were made to restrict
or suspend the activities of the relevant facilities due to
violations of environmental legislation of Ukraine; actions
seeking compensation by the owners of the plant for
damage caused to the state due the accidental
environmental pollution were not treated through legal
action.
Of course, due to the occupation of the Autonomous
Republic of Crimea by the Russian Federation, physical
access of state supervision (control) authorities of
Ukraine to facilities located on the territory of the
peninsula is currently not possible. At the same time,
according to the same «Inspection Portal» basing on the
order of the Main Department of the State Labor Service
of Ukraine in Kyiv region from 10.07.2020 №2063
(attached) and the order of the Head of this service from
25.05.2020 № D-180/1 / 3.3 - 20 in the period from July
17 to July 30, 2020, was organized an inspection of PJSC
«Ukrainian Chemical Products’ (Kyiv) to comply with the
requirements of labor protection and industrial safety
legislation at the facilities of its branch in Armyansk
(Autonomous Republic of Crimea). According to the data
published on the specified web resource, the inspection
was not carried out due to non-admission. By the way,
according to the relevant State Register of Ukraine, at
least two divisions of the Crimean Titan plant belong to
high-risk facilities (production site and liquid ammonia
warehouse) where significant amounts of hazardous
chemicals are stored and used in technological processes.
Despite the fact of armed aggression by Russia and the
temporary occupation of the territories of Ukraine,
interstate regulations on cooperation between Ukraine
and the Russian Federation in the field of environmental
and man-made security enshrined at the level of national
legislation are still in force.

In particular, the Agreement on Cooperation in the Field
of Ecology and Environmental Protection, concluded on
February 8, 1992 between the CIS countries, and the
Agreement between the Government of Ukraine and the
Government of the Russian Federation on cooperation in
the field of prevention of industrial accidents,
catastrophes, natural disasters and elimination of their
consequences, ratified Law of Ukraine №802-XIV
01.07.99. These documents, among other aspects of
cooperation, provide the organization of operational
exchange of information in the mentioned areas.
In addition, according to paragraph 5 of the
Recommendations (№181) of the International Labor
Organization to the Convention of 1993 (№ 174) on the
Prevention of Major Industrial Accidents, ratified by both
countries in 2011, Member States should, inter alia,
contribute to the creation of systems that allow properly
resolve issues of the consequences of such accidents for
the population and the environment.
To meet the requirements of art. 251 of the Specialized
Law on systematic informing the population about the
state of the environment, the dynamics of its changes,
sources of pollution and the nature of the impact of
environmental factors on human health, the central
executive body implementing state policy in the field of
environmental protection must to ensure the preparation
and publication of the Annual National Report on the
State of the Environment in Ukraine. Obviously, the
problems identified by the study of UNDICZ should be
considered on the preparation of the document for the
relevant period. However, last publication on the official
web resource of the Ministry of Environment
(https://menr.gov.ua/) is the National Report for 2015,
and according to available information (attached) as of
07.07.2020 drafts of the similar documents for 2017 and
2018yy are in the process of finalization basing on the
results of their consideration at the meeting of the
Committee of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine on
Environmental Policy and Nature Management on
03.06.2020.
According to art. 69 of the Specialized Law, the damage
caused as a result of violation of the legislation on the
environmental protection is a subject to compensation in
full. At the same time, owners of the sources of increased
environmental danger are obliged to compensate the
damage caused to citizens and legal entities unless they
prove that the damage occurred as a result of natural
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phenomena or intentional actions of the victims.
Also, in accordance with art. 16 of the Specialized Law of
Ukraine «On high-risk objects» damage (including moral)
caused to individuals or juristic persons as a result of an
accident that occurred at a high-risk facility, regardless of

the fault of the business entity, in whose ownership or
use there is an object of increased danger, is reimbursed
by a business entity to these persons in full, except the
cases where the accident occurred due to force majeure
or intent of the victim.
 relevant environmental information on the accident
was not made public;
 the fact of unauthorized (emergency) environmental
pollution by the Crimean Titan plant was not established
in a properly manner;
 no one claim for compensation by the owners of the
Crimean Titan plant for the relevant damage and losses
caused to the state has not been filed;
 the consequences of technological and emergency
environmental pollution by the Crimean Titan plant for
the life and health of the population have not been
studied;
 USRIEP recommendations were not studied (in
particular, regarding the installation of stationary
automatic observation stations at the Kalanchak and
Chaplynka checkpoints and in the village of
Preobrazhenka.

Thus, non-execution by the Cabinet of Ministers of the
subparagraph 1 (в) of paragraph 1 of Decision dated of
12.10.2018 (failure to ensure a proper implementation by
the Ministry of Environment and the Ministry of Justice);
lack of effective control over the state of implementation
of this decision by the National Security and Defense
Council; omission of the State Ecological Inspectorate of
Ukraine and other authorities of state supervision
(control) caused violations by the State of a number of
constitutional and legal rights of the citizens of Ukraine
related to existing threats and possible damage to health
due to environmental pollution in the north of the
temporarily occupied territory of the Autonomous
Republic of Crimea and adjacent districts of the Kherson
region of Ukraine. Such violations are following:
 no measures were taken to prevent and eliminate the
harmful effects of the Crimean Titan plant on the health
and property of the citizens;
 persons affected by the incident were not determined
(in particular, in the territory of Kalanchak and Chaplyn
districts of Kherson region);
 proper legal assistance to citizens to compensate for
the harm caused by the accident have not been provided;

In general, based on the analysis of the above facts, it is
logical to conclude that the owners and authorized state
bodies of Ukraine ignored the problems of threats and
consequences related to the economic (production)
activities of the Crimean Titan plant and incident in 2018,
as well that relevant environmental information was
intentionally hided from the citizens.
It should be noted that according to art. 27 of the Law of
Ukraine «On Information» violation of the legislation on
information entails disciplinary, civil, administrative or
criminal liability under the laws of Ukraine.
According to art. 24 of the Law of Ukraine «On Access to
Public Information», persons responsible for violating the
legislation on access to public information are
responsible for not disclosing information about the
activities of subjects of power, the procedure for
mandatory disclosure of which is established by law (in
particular, socially necessary information, which, among
other things, ensures the implementation of
constitutional rights, freedoms and responsibilities,
indicates the possibility of human rights violations,
misleading the public, harmful environmental and other
negative consequences of activity (inactivity) of
individuals or legal entities, etc.). Article 2123 of the Code
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of Ukraine on Administrative Offenses defines liability for
violation of the right to information. And in accordance
with art. 255 of the Code, only authorized persons of the
Secretariat of the Commissioner for Human Rights of the
Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine or representatives of the
Commissioner for Human Rights of the Verkhovna Rada
of Ukraine have the right to draw up administrative
protocols for such offenses (p. 81).
Also, according to art. 68 of the Specialized Law, violation
of the legislation of Ukraine on environmental protection
entails disciplinary, administrative, civil and criminal
liability established by this Law and other legislation of
Ukraine. In particular, such responsibility shall be borne
by those guilty of the following:
 violation of citizens' rights to an ecologically safe
natural environment;
 failure to take measures to prevent accidents and
eliminate their environmental consequences and other
harmful effects on the environment;
 concealing cases of accidental environmental
pollution or falsification of information about ecological
situation or morbidity of the population.
According to art. 237 and art. 238 of the Criminal Code of
Ukraine, failure to take measures to eliminate the effects
of
environmental
pollution,
concealment
or
misrepresentation
of
information
about
the
environmental condition or morbidity of the population
can be classified as criminal offenses subject to
appropriate punishment. According to art. 367 of the
same code, a crime is also an official negligence, i.e.
failure or improper performance by an official of his (her)
official duties, what caused significant damage to the
legally protected rights, freedoms and interests of the
state or public interests, as well as to the interests of
individual citizens or legal entities.
According to art. 1 of the Law of Ukraine «On the
Commissioner of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine for
Human Rights» parliamentary control over the
observance of constitutional rights and freedoms of man
and citizen, and protection of the rights of everyone on
the territory of Ukraine and within his jurisdiction is
carried out on a permanent basis by the Commissioner of
the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine for Human Right
(hereinafter - the Commissioner).
According to art. 16 and art. 17 of the same Law the
Commissioner can initiate proceedings in a case of
violation of human and civil rights and freedoms, which
is the reason for the appropriate inspections of state
bodies. He can do it as on his own initiative as at the

appeals of deputies of Ukraine, citizens of Ukraine,
foreigners, stateless persons or their representatives
containing information about violations of human and
civil rights and freedoms. According to art. 15 of the same
Law, among these acts of response of the Commissioner
is a submission, which is submitted to public authorities,
local governments, and associations of citizens,
enterprises, institutions, organizations, regardless of
ownership to take appropriate measures to eliminate
violations of human and civil rights and freedoms. The
term for consideration of such submission is 30 calendar
days.
In addition to taking appropriate measures by the state
to remedy the situation following the accidental pollution
by the Crimean Titan plant in 2018 (in particular,
regarding the prosecution of plant owners and officials of
authorized state bodies for illegal activities or inaction)
Ukrainian legislation provides legal mechanisms of selfprotection for citizens' own rights and freedoms.
Thus, in accordance with art. 55 of the Constitution of
Ukraine, everyone has the right to protect their rights and
freedoms from violations and unlawful encroachments by
any legal means. At the same time, everyone is
guaranteed the right to appeal in court against decisions,
actions or omissions of public authorities, local
governments and officials.
According to art. 56 of the Basic Law, everyone has the
right to compensation at the expense of the state or local
governments for material and moral damage caused by
illegal decisions, actions or omissions of public
authorities, local governments, their officials and officials
in the exercises of their powers.
According to art. 24 of the Law of Ukraine «On Access to
Public Information», persons whose rights and legitimate
interests have been violated by information managers
have the right to compensate material and moral damage
in the manner prescribed by law.
According to art. 9 of the Specialized Law, which defines
the environmental rights of citizens of Ukraine, everyone,
among other things, has right to the following:
 file lawsuit against state bodies, enterprises,
institutions, organizations and citizens to compensate
damage caused to their health and property as a result of
negative impact on the environment;
 appealing in court against decisions, actions or
omissions of public authorities, local governments, their
officials on violations of environmental rights of citizens
in the manner prescribed by law.
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Summarizing the above, we can conclude that there are legal grounds for compensation by the
state to citizens of Ukraine material and moral damage caused by omission of public authorities
(NSDC, СabMin, central executive bodies) in the exercise of their powers in ensuring and monitoring
the implementation of subparagraph 1 (в) of paragraph 1 of Decision of 12.10.2018, as well as the
lack of other appropriate response measures to remedy the situation after the accidental
environmental pollution by the plant of «Crimean Titan» in 2018.
Given the limited range of issues studied during the above-mentioned USRIEP study, as well as the time
elapsed, obviously there is a need for additional professional research to quantify the total damage.
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